
200 E. Wells Street

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 

53202

City of Milwaukee

Meeting Minutes

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

COMMITTEE
ALD. JOSEPH DUDZIK, CHAIR

Ald. Robert Bauman, Ald. Michael Murphy, Jeffrey Mantes,  W. Martin Morics,  Mark 

Nicolini, and Mariano Schifalacqua

Staff Assistant, Terry MacDonald

Phone:  (414)-286-2233; Fax: (414) 286-3456, E-mail: tmacdo@milwaukee.gov

11:00 AM Room 301-B, City HallFriday, September 11, 2009

Meeting convened: 11:05 A.M.

Members Present: 7 - Ald. Joesph  Dudzik, Chair, Ald. Robert Bauman, Gerald Froh (Ald. 

Michael Murphy Alternate), Jeffrey Mantes, Michael Daun (W. Martin Morics Alternate), 

Mark Nicolini, and Mariano Schifalacqua

Members Excused: 0

Also present: Venu Gupta, Dept. of Public Works (Alternate for Jeff Mantes), Marianne 

Walsh, Manager, Legislative Reference Bureau, Michael Talarczyk, Legislative Reference 

Bureau, David Schroeder (Alternate for Mr. Nicolini), Dept. of Admin., Budget & Management 

Div. and Ald. Michael Murphy

1.      Introduction of members

Members introduced themselves.

Page 1City of Milwaukee



September 11, 2009CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

COMMITTEE

Meeting Minutes

2.      Presentation given by Jim Owczarski, Deputy City Clerk, relative to meeting rules, 

procedures and the open records laws

Deputy City Clerk Jim Owczarski appeared and discussed various aspects of the 

state Open Records and Open Meetings laws.

Mr. Owczarski said Ald. Bauman has discussed with him the possibility of a walking 

or rolling quorum with this committee, because a number of the members of this 

committee do engage in discussions on capital improvement issues on a regular 

basis.

Mr. Owczarski said he has contacted City Attorney Melanie Swank regarding the 

possibility of a walking/rolling quorum that this committee could face, and she advised 

him that she has contacted the Attorney General’s Office and is waiting to hear back 

from them.   He also said that as soon as he hears from City Atty. Swank he will 

forward that information to this committee's chair.

Mr. Owczarski advised the committee members that a quorum of this committee 

consist of four members, therefore, all committee members will need to be cognizant 

of the number of members present when discussing capital improvement matters.

Page 2City of Milwaukee



September 11, 2009CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

COMMITTEE

Meeting Minutes

3.      Discussion relating to the purpose, responsibilities and goals of the Committee

Ald. Dudzik said the City Clerk’s Office staff has provided members with copies of the 

following:

1. Common Council Files #081215 and 090090;

2. The 2008 Capital Improvements budget Fiscal Analysis (Exhibit 1); and

3. A report titled: 1985 Capital Budget and 1986-1991 Capital Improvements 

Program,   prepared by the previous established Capital improvements Committee. 

(Exhibit 2)

Ald. Dudzik said those documents will be useful tools for this committee. 

Ald. Dudzik referred to Common Council File 081215 and said that there are a lot of 

goals listed and feels that some of the goals may be unattainable, such as eliminating 

any deferred capital maintenance and the February 1 annual due date for reports.  

Mr. Schifalacqua commented that he is not aware of the discussion that took place in 

reinstituting this committee, but it was a great idea.  He said the City lost out by not 

having such a committee. He said the City got away from true long term planning and 

looking at the internal relationship between capital and maintenance. He said he 

agrees with Ald. Dudzik that this committee has been given a big charge and doesn’t 

feel a February 1, deadline for the reports will be possible.  He said he noticed in the 

ordinance that it also creates a position and said that should be this committee’s first 

priority.

Mr. Nicolini replied that the 2010 proposed budget creates a new full time position in 

the Department of Public Works to staff this committee. He said this committee may 

want to have a discussion, in the near future, relating to the creation of the job 

description.  

Mr. Schifalacqua asked if that position can be created sooner than January 1, 2010?

Mr. Nicolini replied that it is up to the Common Council and that it may be feasible. He 

said he could open a file on behalf of an alderman asking that the position be created 

before the end of the year.   

Ald. Dudzik replied that the creation of the job description should be the first step and 

then the second step would be to have it go before the Finance & Personnel 

Committee for approval. 

Mr. Daun said the scope of this committee's duties are similar to what Mr. Froh's job 

description was when he was employed with the City of Milwaukee Dept of Public 

Works and suggested that this committee review that job description as a starting 

point.  He also directed members to page 2, part 4 of file #081215 relating to reports 

and said that there are some versions of those reports that are already being done 

and that this committee may want to take a look at those when creating the job 

description. 

Ald. Dudzik asked if some of the information needed for the reports can be obtained 

from some of the Comptroller's past audits?

Mr. Daun replied that he can't recall any audits that the Comptroller has done that 

would contain any information that could be used.  He said there are some databases 

that the Department of Public Works has created that may be useful.  He said his 

Page 3City of Milwaukee



September 11, 2009CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

COMMITTEE

Meeting Minutes

office will review and make available to this committee any information it may have 

relating to capital improvements.   

Mr. Mantes replied that the Department of Public Works does have a large amount of 

infrastructure data available.

Mr. Froh said that the last infrastructure report he had done was in 1988.  He said the 

person who fills the position will struggle through the first year, because he/she would 

need to pull together all of the information needed.

4.      Set next meeting date(s) and time

Ald. Dudzik suggested that the next meeting take place on Thursday, October 15, 

2009 at 1:30 p.m. There were no objections.

Mr. Daun asked if several meeting dates could be set?  

Ald. Dudzik suggested that this committee meet on the third Thursday of every 

month.  There were no objections.

5.      Set next meeting's agenda

Mr. Nicolini suggested the following items be discussed at the next meeting:

1.  Presentation and discussion on the mayor's proposed 2010 capital Improvements 

budget plan

2.  Discussion relating to the federal stimulus funded capital improvements projects 

(provided by Dept. of Public Works)

3.  Discussion relating to the drafting of a job description for the newly created 

position

Meeting adjourned: 11:43 A.M.

Terry J. MacDonald

Staff Assistant

Page 4City of Milwaukee


















